
Board of Directors

AGENDA 
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
TIME: 6 p.m.   DATE:  Monday, February 5, 2024 
PLACE:  Dublin San Ramon Services District 

Boardroom 
7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, CA 
www.derwa.org 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG

3. ROLL CALL - Members: Coleman, Vonheeder-Leopold, Chan, and Johnson
   Alternates: Goel and Young 

4. SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS/ACTIVITIES

5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Meeting Open to the Public)
At this time, those in the audience are encouraged to address the Board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Board and not already included on tonight’s agenda. Comments should not exceed five minutes. Speaker cards are
available from the Authority Secretary and should be completed and returned to the Authority Secretary prior to addressing the 
Board.  The Chair of the Board will recognize each speaker, at which time the speaker should proceed to the lectern, introduce
him/herself, and then proceed with his/her comment. Written comments may be submitted to the Authority Secretary at
genzale@dsrsd.com. Comments received by 3 p.m. on the day of the meeting will be provided to the Board. 

6. BOARD REORGANIZATION

A. Approve Selection of Board Officers for 2024
Recommended Action: Approve by Motions (3)

7. CONSENT CALENDAR
Matters listed under this item are considered routine and will be enacted by one action in the form listed below. There will be
no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a Member of the Board or the public prior to the time the Board
votes on the Motion to adopt. 

A. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of December 11, 2023
Recommended Action: Approve by Motion

B. Approve Treasurer’s Reports for October 31, November 30, and December 31, 2023
Recommended Action: Approve by Motion

Our mission is to maximize the amount of recycled water delivered while recovering its costs; in doing so it will provide a 
reliable and consistent supply of recycled water to DSRSD and EBMUD for service to each of the agencies' customers. 

http://www.derwa.org/
mailto:genzale@dsrsd.com


DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority                                Board of Directors 
Agenda, Regular Meeting, Monday, February 5, 2024    Page 2 

 
 
 C. Approve Quarterly Investment Report for December 31, 2023 

Recommended Action: Approve by Motion 
 
 D.           Adopt New Cash Reserves Policy 
  Recommended Action: Adopt by Resolution 
 
8. BOARD BUSINESS 
  

A.        Receive Presentation on EBMUD-Central San Recycled Water Feasibility Evaluation 
       Recommended Action: Receive Presentation 

 
B.        Approve the First Amendment to the Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled 

       Water Between the Dublin San Ramon Services District•East Bay Municipal Utility District Recycled 
       Water Authority, Dublin San Ramon Services District, and East Bay Municipal Utility District  
 Recommended Action: Approve by Resolution 

 
9. STAFF REPORTS 
 

A.  Authority Manager Update 
B.  Confirm Special Board Meeting – March 25, 2024 

 
10.       BOARDMEMBER ITEMS 
 
11. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 As Authorized Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957: 
 Public Employment 
 Position:  Authority Manager 
 
12. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
13.     ADJOURNMENT     
 
All materials made available or distributed in open session at Board meetings are public information and are available for inspection during business 
hours by calling the Authority Secretary at (925) 828-0515. A fee may be charged for copies. District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act. If special accommodations are needed, please contact the Authority Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to 
the meeting.  



Item 6.A 

Prepared by JP Reviewed by RGS 
 

 
 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Approve Selection of Board Officers for 2024  

 
 
Summary: 
 
The DSRSD●EBMUD Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JPA) requires the election of Chair, 
Vice Chair, and the appointment of the Authority Secretary by a majority vote of the Directors. 
The JPA provides that the officers of the Board hold office until the next election or until relieved 
by their agency. The attached table summarizes the past DERWA Chair and Vice Chair officers. 
 
In December 2023, the Dublin San Ramon Services District (DSRSD) Board appointed 
Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold and Ann Marie Johnson as the DSRSD representatives to the 
DERWA Board, and Arun Goel as the DSRSD Alternate Representative. In January 2024, the 
East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) Board appointed John A. Coleman and April Chan 
as the EBMUD representatives to the DERWA Board, and Marguerite Young as the EBMUD 
Alternate Representative.   
 
Following DERWA’s past practice of alternating positions of Chair and Vice Chair between the 
Member Agencies, in 2024 the Chair should be a DSRSD representative, and the Vice Chair 
should be an EBMUD representative.  
 
In 2023, EBMUD Director John A. Coleman served as DERWA Chair, and DSRSD Director 
Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold served as Vice Chair. Therefore, in 2024, Director Vonheeder-
Leopold should be nominated as DERWA Chair, and EBMUD Director April Chan should be 
nominated as DERWA Vice Chair.   
 
In addition to the above, DSRSD’s Joint Powers Agency Rotation policy provides guidance for 
which DSRSD representative to the DERWA Board should be designated as Chair and supports 
that Director Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold should be nominated as DERWA Chair for 2024. 
 
In October 2015, the DERWA Board appointed DSRSD Executive Services Supervisor/District 
Secretary Nicole Genzale as Authority Secretary. She has ably served DERWA, and it would be 
appropriate to continue her appointment. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Authority Manager recommends the DERWA Board of Directors select, by three separate 
Motions, the officers of Chair, Vice Chair, and Authority Secretary for 2024. 
 
 
February 5, 2024 
 
Attachment: 
 

1.  Past DERWA Officers 
  



  Attachment 1 
 

PAST DERWA OFFICERS 
 

YEAR CHAIR VICE CHAIR 
2010 Jeff Hansen John A. Coleman 
2011 John A. Coleman Dwight “Pat” Howard 
2012 Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold Frank Mellon 
2013 Frank Mellon Rich Halket 
2014 Dwight “Pat” Howard John A. Coleman 
2015 John A. Coleman Edward “Ed” Duarte 
2016 Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold Frank Mellon 
2017 Frank Mellon Dwight “Pat” Howard 
2018 Dwight “Pat” Howard John A. Coleman 
2019 John A. Coleman Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold  
2020 Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold Frank Mellon 
2021 Frank Mellon Marisol Rubio 
2022 Marisol Rubio John A. Coleman 
2023 John A. Coleman Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold 

 
 
 



  Item 7.A 
 

  DRAFT 

DSRSD•EBMUD RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY 
(DERWA) 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, December 11, 2023 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER – Chair Coleman called the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority (DERWA) 

meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG  
 
3. ROLL CALL – Directors present: Chair John Coleman, Vice Chair Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, and 

Directors April Chan, and Ann Marie Johnson. DERWA Staff present: Jan Lee, Authority Manager; 
Jacqueline Lee, Treasurer; Austin Cho, General Counsel; and Nicole Genzale, Authority Secretary 

 
4. SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS/ACTIVITIES 

Authority Manager Lee introduced DSRSD Operations Director Dan Gill who will oversee DERWA 
operations. 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT – 6:01 p.m. – None  
 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Vice Chair Vonheeder-Leopold MOVED for approval of the items on the Consent Calendar. Director 
Chan SECONDED the MOTION, which CARRIED with FOUR AYES. 
 
A. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of September 25, 2023 – Approved 

 
B. Approve Treasurer’s Reports for August 31, and September 30, 2023 – Approved 

 
C. Approve Quarterly Investment Report for September 30, 2023 – Approved 

 
7. BOARD BUSINESS 
 

A. Accept Independent Auditors’ Report for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 
Director Chan requested that DERWA’s auditor provide a presentation to the Board for next 
year’s report. Treasurer Lee confirmed that will be arranged. 
 
Vice Chair Vonheeder-Leopold MOVED to Accept Independent Auditors’ Report for Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30, 2023. Director Johnson SECONDED the MOTION, which CARRIED with FOUR 
AYES. 
 

B. Discuss Proposed DERWA Cash Reserves Policy 
 

Treasurer Lee reviewed the item for the Board.  She stated that the finalized policy will be 
brought to the next Board meeting for formal adoption. 
 
Vice Chair Vonheeder-Leopold MOVED to Accept the Proposed Cash Reserves Policy. Director 
Chan SECONDED the MOTION, which CARRIED with FOUR AYES. 



DERWA Regular Meeting Minutes  December 11, 2023 
 
 

  2 DRAFT 

C. Receive Presentation on Recycled Water Supply and Operation Plans Update 
 
Authority Manager Lee reviewed the item for the Board. She introduced Katie Ruby, Project 
Manager from consultant Brown and Caldwell, who reviewed the presentation which covered: 
 Demand management strategies  

− Improved water efficiency 
− City recycled water budgets 
− Rebates 
− Water loss control 

 Refined demand projections 
− Total demand projections for today, by 2030, and beyond 2030 

 Triggers and decision points for connecting new customers in the near-term 
− Eight customers are ready to connect (EBMUD = three, DSRSD = five) 

 Proposed roadmap for lifting the moratorium, including recommendations for pursuing 
various supply alternatives and near-term policy changes  

− Supply alternatives recap (7 of 14 supply alternatives carried forward) 
− Takeaways from September Board meeting 
− Road map for expansion by 2025, 2030, and 2045   

 Next Steps 
− Finalize study 
− Member agencies to initiate proposed near-term actions (policy changes, 

discussions with Central Contra Costa Sanitary District (Central San) and City of 
Livermore, and planning for test well 

− Fiscal Year 2025 budget considerations at April 2024 Board meeting  
 
The Board and staff discussed various aspects of the presentation with emphasis placed on 
potential demand management measures and further understanding of the supply alternatives. 
The Board expressed its desire to continue discussions with Central San, City of Livermore, and 
Zone 7 Water Agency regarding their potential interest in partnering with DERWA on future 
recycled water projects. Authority Manager Lee stated that more will be known about possible 
partnership opportunities after the EBMUD-Central San Recycled Water Feasibility Evaluation 
and EBMUD Recycled Water Strategic Plan are completed. Preliminary results from the EBMUD-
Central San Recycled Water Feasibility Evaluation will be shared with the DERWA Board at the 
February Board meeting and will include additional discussion on the approach and schedule for 
pursuing long-term opportunities with Central San.  
 
The Board also conveyed some historical perspective regarding DERWA’s progress and growth, 
noting how views on the benefits of recycled water projects have changed over time. The Board 
also emphasized the importance of keeping the lines of communication open with the potential 
partner agencies identified in the presentation.  
 
The Board directed staff to carry forward all seven supplemental supply alternatives and to 

 proceed with the next steps as recommended by staff.     
 

D. Approve Appointment of Richard G. Sykes as Interim Authority Manager and Authorize 
Agreement for Services, and Discuss Authority Manager Recruitment  
 
Chair Coleman reviewed the item for the Board.   
 



DERWA Regular Meeting Minutes  December 11, 2023 
 
 

  3 DRAFT 

Vice Chair Vonheeder-Leopold MOVED to Approve the Appointment of Richard G. Sykes as 
Interim Authority Manager, and Approve Resolution No. 23-5, Approving and Authorizing 
Execution of an Agreement for the Services of an Interim Authority Manager Between the 
DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority and Richard G. Sykes. Director Johnson SECONDED the 
MOTION, which CARRIED with FOUR AYES. 
 
Authority Manager Lee reviewed the proposed approach and schedule for recruitment of the 
permanent Authority Manager, who will fill the position following Mr. Sykes’ interim service. 
DSRSD staff has agreed to begin the recruitment next month, with the intent to provide the 
Board with a short list of candidates to interview at a special Board meeting in March and to 
make a final selection in April. The Board directed staff to have DSRSD begin the Authority 
Manager recruitment as proposed. 
 

8. STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. Authority Manager Update 
              Authority Manager Lee had no additional updates to report since publication of the agenda  
 packet. 

 
B. Confirm Next Board Meeting – February 5, 2024  

The Board acknowledged the February meeting date and did not request any changes. 
 

9.   BOARDMEMBER ITEMS  
 
      The Board wished Happy Holidays to all. 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chair Coleman adjourned the meeting at 7:19 p.m. 
 

Submitted by,  
 

 
Nicole M. Genzale, CMC 
Authority Secretary 



Item 7.B 

Prepared by JP Reviewed by RS 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

Approve Treasurer’s Reports for October 31, November 30, and December 31, 2023 

Summary: 

Attached are the Treasurer’s Reports for the months ending October 31, November 30, and 
December 31, 2023, submitted by Treasurer Jacqueline Lee.  

Recommendation: 

The Treasurer recommends the DERWA Board of Directors approve, by Motion, the Treasurer’s 
Reports for the months ending October 31, November 30, and December 31, 2023. 

February 5, 2024 

Attachments: 

1. Treasurer’s Report – October 31, 2023
2. Treasurer’s Report – November 30, 2023
3. Treasurer's Report – December 31, 2023



�����������	��
�
���	����	���������	�����������	������	���	�
�����	���	 ! �	���""	��#���	$%%&'()*	+,	%()	-./0$	12345623275	839:2;	<:2	;=3	>:?;=	)@*+@A	B'%CD)E	FGH	IJIFK	$	,LMM&EN	CO	%E&@,&'%+C@,	&@*	E)'CMM)@*&%+C@	OCPPCQ,K	/)R)@L),STL@*+@AU	-LE+@A	%()	MC@%(H	VGWXHWFJ	+@	&A)@'N	E)+MDLE,)M)@%,	&@*	VYHIWG	+@	+@%)E),%	Q&,	E)')+R)*K	T+,'&P	N)&EZ%CZ*&%)	E)R)@L)	OCE	T[I\	%C%&P)*	VG]GHF]GK	̂C	C%()E	M+,')PP&@)CL,	_&NM)@%,	Q)E)	E)')+R)*	%(+,	MC@%(K	.̀_)@,),U	aLEE)@%	MC@%(	*+,DLE,)M)@%,	Q)E)	VIGWHXG]K	T+,'&P	N)&EZ%CZ*&%)	)̀_)@*+%LE),	OCE	T[I\	%C%&P	V\bbH\\bc	CO	Q(+'(	VFW\HW]b	Q&,	OCE	C_)E&%+@A	)̀_)@,),K	.̀_)@*+%LE),	*C	@C%	E)OP)'%	&PP	,%&OO	&@*	'C@,LP%&@%	'C,%,	+@'LEE)*	DL%	@C%	N)%	D+PP)*	%C	-./0$	+@	T[I\K	a&,(U	d()	'&,(	D&P&@')	&%	B'%CD)E	FGH	IJIF	Q&,	VIHbFbHGX\K	eLDM+%%)*	DNU	f&'gL)P+@)	h))	dE)&,LE)E	-&%)*U	̂CR)MD)E	iXH	IJIF	

Attachment 1



���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	������������ �����
��	������������ �����������!� �����
��	����"���
�����#���$!�  %&% ��'��"���
�����#���( ��'��"���
�����#)*+,-*.,�/,012�3 4��������������������� 567896735������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 567896735��������� :6;<;6=>9���� ;635867=5�����)*+,-*.,�/,012�> 4��������������������� :677<63>9������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� :677<63>9��������� ;6<<>6>8:���� 8576<78��������)*+,-*.,�/,012�; 4��������������������� >6><8699;������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� >6><8699;��������� 3653=6>9:���� 78865==��������)*+,-*.,�/,012�: 4��������������������� 3683:6=7=������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3683:6=7=��������� ;8;68<7������� 36>736>5:�����)*+,-*.,�/,012�7 4��������������������� 36:;96==3������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 36:;96==3��������� >9963=7������� 36>;965=8�����)*+,-*.,�/,012�8 4��������������������� 8657=6<8=������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 8657=6<8=��������� :;965<:������� 86;>=69<7�����?@,0AB,.A�)-0.A 4��������������������� 3765;>65=:����� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3765;>65=:������� <6=:<6<:;���� 865<;6=73�����)CB+�DA0A*E.F 4��������������������� <678;6>=:������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� <678;6>=:��������� 8655868:<���� 365<868:8�����G0A,@�?0.HF 4��������������������� 3>6;=;6:<;����� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3>6;=;6:<;������� 56>>3677>���� 763536=;3�����)20F,�>�)*+,-*.,�I�)CB+�DA0A*E. 4��������������������� ;6:8>6=;<������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� ;6:8>6=;<��������� 4������������������� ;6:8>6=;<�����J01HKE.,�LE@@EF*E. 4��������������������� 3639=699:������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3639=699:��������� 3>>6;9>������� =<8659>��������DLMNM 4��������������������� ;:365>8���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� ;:365>8������������ 3=:65<:������� 3:86=:>��������OJPQN�)*+,-*.,�)20F,�>6�;�I: 4��������������������� 89>63=;���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 89>63=;������������ 4������������������� 89>63=;��������R*.,�D1@,,.*.S 4��������������������� =>56<33���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� =>56<33������������ 7><6<7>������� ;=<6=7=��������T,UV/,+-01,B,.A�L0+*A0-�W79X >996999��������� ;:568<;���������� ;699<���������������� >;69;8������������ ;59653=������������ 377653>������� >376995��������PRVQY�LE.A@E-�)@ES@0B*.S�Q+Z0A, 4��������������������� 3::6;88���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3::6;88������������ <>6><=��������� 8>6955����������)@ES@0B�)-0..*.S�I�M*@�/,-*,[ 4��������������������� 76:=368>;������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 76:=368>;��������� >68=868<7���� >65=:6=;<�����)-0..*.S��)@*E@�\,0@F 4��������������������� ;68876;;9������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� ;68876;;9��������� 365=8693>���� 36<8=6;3<�����),@B0.,.A�DC++-]�DC++-̂� :;76999��������� 367<865>:������� 7:6;8:�������������� 39;685<���������� 368=96:9>��������� =<96:;;������� 59=6=8=��������)D/43�YRN�/,+-01,B,.A 4��������������������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������M*@�/,-*,[�Y0-_,�/,20K*-*A0A*E.V/,+-01,B,.A 3;76999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������DRQY�0.Z�PR�̀+,@0A*E.0-�M.0-̂F*F 4��������������������� :76:55������������ 4������������������������ 4���������������������� :76:55�������������� >96=3=��������� >:677<����������L2-E@*.,�P*a,@�/,+-01,B,.A 4��������������������� 3;6333������������ 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3;6333�������������� 869;3����������� 569<9������������DRQY�L0K-,�b0@.,FF�/,+-01,B,.A >;6999����������� 3:=65<:���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3:=65<:������������ 8<6=93��������� <96<<;����������QY�c0B+�O-,1A@*10-�LE..,1AE@�/,+-01,B,.A 356999����������� 3>868;7���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3>868;7������������ 7<6>7>��������� 8<6;<;����������bYML�/,+-01,B,.AF 4��������������������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������?d)D�YRN�Q+S@0Z,F 3796999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������J01HU0F2�M.0-̂F*F >996999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������e0A,�/,+-01,B,.AF 3796999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������)*.,�Y0--,̂�?@0.FB*FF*E.�L0A2EZ*1�)@EA,1A*E. >;96999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������N,1EBB*FF*E.�P*1@E[*-A@0A*E.�R01*-*Â 796999����������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������PR�P,BK@0.,�/,+-01, 4��������������������� 8=<6<;;���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 8=<6<;;������������ ;;76::9������� ;8;6;=;��������cYMPGM�LE..,1A*E. 4��������������������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������8A2�/G?)�D0.Z�R*-A,@ 4��������������������� >77����������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� >77������������������� >5���������������� >><���������������NG/�d/GP4�)@E+�<:�/Z�;�N@ECS2A�)@Ef,1A 4��������������������� 386:;>������������ 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 386:;>�������������� <6>38����������� <6>38������������)D/3�V/,1̂]�G0A,@�?@,0AB,.A�Oa+0.F*E. 4��������������������� 3767><6>89����� 4������������������������ 56388�������������� 3767;76:>8������� =6<3=65;3���� 7653768=7�����)-,0F0.AE.�L0+*A0-�J*--*.SVLE.A*.S,.1̂ 4��������������������� 765=763;=������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 765=763;=��������� 4������������������� 765=763;=�����L0+*A0-*g,Z�d.A,@,FA 4��������������������� 36=896<5>������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 36=896<5>��������� =896<>5������� 3699969:7�����hijk�i��������� h��ikh�i��l��� jmi�m��������������� h��inn����������� h��i��nih�l����� jhiml�ij�n�� jhi�njijkn���opqrstuvw�x�utqy ���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	�����������������
��	������������ �����������!� �����
��	����"���
�����#���$!�  %&% ���'��"���
�����#���( ��'��"���
�����#NO/GM�)@ES@0B�P0.0S,@ >:76999��������� :698;68;:������� ;638<���������������� 336:<<������������ :695763>>��������� >6=>;6;=<���� 3637365>:�����?@,0FC@,@ 3936999��������� ;69:767:5������� 763=:���������������� 37698>������������ ;6989689=��������� >6>=76:78���� 587637;��������c,S0-�LEC.F,- >76999����������� 7856735���������� 3968<9�������������� 3968<9������������ 75<63=5������������ :;;68:<������� 3::67:=��������D,1@,A0@̂ 3<6999����������� >5>6759���������� 4������������������������ >=3����������������� >5>6<83������������ >9:68:8������� 8<6>37����������À2,@ 3;76999��������� 36=5>69;9������� 3;=6;9>������������ 3;=6;9>���������� >63336;;>��������� 367<;6799���� 7>56<;>��������+̀,@0A*E.�0.Z�P0*.A,.0.1,�N,A0*- 765>76999������ ;96<9<6><7����� 4������������������������ 35565:7���������� ;96=<869;9������� >;67<963::�� 56:976<<8�����N,KA�D,@_*1, 368:7673;������ ;96>7868>8����� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� ;96>7868>8������� 38637868=8�� 3:69==6=;9���mink�ijh������� m�iknli��k����� hjni��������������� �j�ijln���������� mhi���immm������� �mihmmi�nn�� ��ihl�i�nk����&z{�����z�|}% ki�n�ijh� hm�ik��i��j �hjimhl �nni��n hm�i�nninn� knik�kikkl mji��ninnm&�~��(�%����(� ��" �	����������� �����#�����MS,.1̂�LE.A@*KCA*E.ND/DN 4��������������������� 4����������������������OJPQN 4��������������������� 4����������������������)-,0F0.AE. 4��������������������� 4����������������������MS,.1̂�/,*BKC@F,B,.AF�4�ND/DN 3868=7����������� 3>6<>>������������MS,.1̂�/,*BKC@F,B,.AF�4�OJPQN 4��������������������� �36=9<��������������LEBB,@1*0-�)0+,@�dFFC,Z 4��������������������� 4����������������������)-,0F0.AE.�+0̂B,.AF 3:96<;7��������� 3:96<;7����������d.A,@,FA�V�LE.A@01AF =6>73������������� =683>��������������P*F1�d.1EB, 4��������������������� 4����������������������?̀ ?Mc�/OYOTQOD�I�RQTNdTe 38865<3��������� 3836;83����������LMDb�MYMdcMJcO �	����������� �����#�����J,S*..*.S�L0F2 >6<<5639=������ 36;=;6:==������� )@,+0@,Z�K̂������������������������������������J,S]�J0-0.1,�MZf��)@*E@�\,0@�M11@C0-F� 4��������������������� 36553658>������� ����������������������������P0AA�bEC1H N0A,/EC.Z*.S 4��������������������� 4����������������������/,_*,U,Z�K̂���������������������������������������������������������������\,..̂�LEKC@. N0A,?EA0-�/,_,.C,F�I�RC.Z*.S 38865<3��������� 3836;83����������?EA0-�Oa+,.Z*AC@,F �>376538��������� �:<<6::<���������� M++@E_,Z�K̂�����������������������������������O.Z*.S�L0F2 >6<;<635:������ >6<;<635:������� ����������������������������/EK,@A�b0..0̂ N0A,9

����#�z������������������#�����

�|���|}����&z{���

����#�������#��������������#�����

 %&% ����( �&����}� ��|��&�|(��z&����&�|%(&�&�%�&��z&��z&�������&�z ��� � �z��z��&��hi�����

���������������������������� �¡¢£�¡¤¡¥�¦¤§̈©�ª«¬®̄°°±�²³́µ¶° ������������·̧¹�º������



����� ����� ����� ��	�
��� ��� ����� ����� �������� !�����"��	� #$%&�� �%�$'	 �%�$'	 �%�$'	()*)+*,- ,)))-.,)/ 0123456785698:�567;9<4!;76047= !��>0797064�?65�@*9��"�A�6B/)C6D0>�E���E�6F,GH (I,+-J/) (I,+-J/)6666666666666 >666666666666666666666 ! )J)) (I,+-J/)()*)+*,- ,)))-.,)/ 0123456785698:�567;9<4!;76047= !��>0797064�?65�@*9��"�A�6B/)C6D;>�E���E�6-(GH K-,J/. >666666666666666666666 K-,J/.6666666666666666 ! )J)) K-,J/.()*)+*,- ,)))-.,)/ 0123456785698:�567;9<4!;76047= !��>0797064�?65�@*9��"�A�6B/)C6DL"��M���E�,NGH .(,J,/ >666666666666666666666 >666666666666666666666 ! )J)) .(,J,/()*)+*,- ,)))-.(.) 2899;==621745;7767;9<4!;7645! ��>L� 6:��� ��>7��OO6D+N*--H /,.J)( -/-JNN6666666666666666 (NFJ,F6666666666666666 � /,.J)( )J))()*)+*,- ,)))-.(.) 2899;==621745;7767;9<4!;7645! ��>L� 6:��� ��>7��OO6D+N*--H NK,J)( /-)J+/6666666666666666 ,+(J-+6666666666666666 � NK,J)( )J))()*)+*,- ,)))-.(N+ 833485=64571985!;679<!7645! ��>��P��>4�MQ���A�6D+N*--H (-KI-)(JN/ K-I--,J(N66666666666 F/IK+KJ/.66666666666 � (-KI-)(JN/ )J))()*)+*,- ,)))-.(.) 2899;==621745;7767;9<4!;7645! ��>L� 6:��� ��>7��OO6D+N*--H /KFJ)( -KNJKK6666666666666666 (K+J),6666666666666666 � /KFJ)( )J))()*)+*,- ,)))-.(./ 29�R56S6!830R;33 !��6>6L�T67Q��"6R��67Q�6D/.*F,H /FI-+FJ(+ -(I/-(J,(66666666666 ,,I.-,JK/66666666666 ! )J)) /FI-+FJ(+()*(-*,- ,)))-./(( 2899;==621745;7767;9<4!;7645! ��>L� 6:��� ��>7��OO6D+K*-(H +,NJ)( F-,J+F6666666666666666 (KFJ-N6666666666666666 � +,NJ)( )J))()*(-*,- ,)))-./-K ;2:10 ��>6=���>6!EM�68AA�D+.J+/*-(J-/H FI+F)J+N -I(./J.,6666666666666 (IF/FJ./6666666666666 � FI+F)J+N )J))()*(-*,- ,)))-./-K ;2:10 ��>6=���>67�"��UD+.J+/*-(J-/H //,JNF -NKJF+6666666666666666 (N-J,.6666666666666666 � //,JNF )J))()*(.*,- ,)))-.NN+ 0�R5;V629850I633L ��>0��@�63� �"6!EQ�M�"6D+.J+/*-(J-/H /I-,)J)) -I+/,J(.6666666666666 (I++NJ.,6666666666666 � /I-,)J)) )J))()*,/*,- ,)))-K,+, 0�R5;V629850I633L ��>0��@�63� �"6!EQ�M�"6D+.J+/*-(J-/H /I-+)J)) -I+NKJ+F6666666666666 (I+.)J-+6666666666666 � /I-+)J)) )J))()*,/*,- ,)))-K,-, 2899;==621745;7767;9<4!;7645! ��>L� 6:��� ��>7��OO6D+K*-(H ,+FJ)) (.,J(+6666666666666666 .(J.F666666666666666666 � ,+FJ)) )J))()*,/*,- ,)))-K,-, 2899;==621745;7767;9<4!;7645! ��>L� 6:��� ��>7��OO6D+K*-(H -+-J)( ,/)JF.6666666666666666 ((,J/-6666666666666666 � -+-J)( )J))>666666666666666666666 >666666666666666666666 )J)) )J))>666666666666666666666 >666666666666666666666 )J)) )J)),(/IN(/JN) (-KI(N(J+N N/IN-(JN. (/.I-F-J,( /NI-N,JFK!����O�A���M6EO60�MWJRC6;�X�� 66668TEQ��()*+*,- (K.I/..J,NY66666 L"��M���E�>6 .(,J,/6666666666666666()*(-*,- /I.,)JF,Y666666666 6 )J))9�AE�A�"�X()*(.*,- /I-,)J))Y666666666 )J))9�AE�A�"�X()*,/*,- /IK.NJ)(Y666666666 )J))9�AE�A�"�X�L (/.I-F-J,(666666666 )J))9�AE�A�"�X!8L /NI-N,JFK66666666666,(/IN(/JN)Y66666666

�����Z�����6���[����6\���6��]��̂[������[6�_6�̀ ��#�̂����6_��6]�6���̂��6�#�����	�&��6abc6deda



����������	
������ ������ ������������ ������� !�"�#��$%�&'�(�)**�+,+-,.�/0,12345�2617.8-97861:;<=>?@�A=BCDEFG=C=>HG�I�JKAKJ �L�LM����;<=>?@�A=BCDEFG=C=>HG�I�NOPQJ ����RBH@�ST�UV=WGW>HS>�UW@C=>HG �����X���LY>H=F=GH�Y>?SC= ����ZH[=F�A=BCDEFG=C=>HGI�PBG? M�����X�\,55�81]682,�̂/3+,175:JQO_Ỳ�K;̀ �A;PZ̀ �KNAaYRNK�JYKb ��cLc���X dX�����XXeO;AANbb�OQKỲNKK�KNAaYRNK�ỲR ��cLc���X d������eO;AANbb�OQKỲNKK�KNAaYRNK�ỲR ��cLc���X d�M����e;__Y;̀ b�ỲKQA;̀ RN�KAaRK�ỲR ��cLc���X d�XM�X�����eO;AANbb�OQKỲNKK�KNAaYRNK�ỲR ��cLc���X d�M����eOAZf �̀g�R;_JfN__ ��cLc���X d���XL���LeO;AANbb�OQKỲNKK�KNAaYRNK�ỲR ��c�Xc���X dL�����eNOPQJ ��c�Xc���X d���MX���eJZf Ǹh�OA;̀ J��__U ��c��c���X d��X�����eJZf Ǹh�OA;̀ J��__U ��c��c���X d��XL����eO;AANbb�OQKỲNKK�KNAaYRNK�ỲR ��c��c���X d�L����eO;AANbb�OQKỲNKK�KNAaYRNK�ỲR ��c��c���X dXLX���e����������	
������ i��i��� �jk�kjil�m�n��������������ASE>oB>< �����������������������������������������	
�i��i��� �jk�kjilpm��������������

qrstu��uvw�srxysz



�����������	��
�
���	����	���������	�����������	������	���	��������	� !	" "�		���##	��$���			%&&'()*+	,-	&)*	./01%	23456734386	94:;3<	=;3	<>4	?;@<>	*A+,AB	CDE*FG*H	IJK	LJLIM	%	-NFF'HO	DP	&H'A-'(&,DA-	'A+	H*(DFF*A+'&,DA	PDQQDR-M		0*E*AN*-STNA+,ABU	.NH,AB	&)*	FDA&)K	VWIXKYWI	,A	'B*A(O	H*,FGNH-*F*A&-	R*H*	H*(*,E*+M	T,-('Q	O*'HZ&DZ+'&*	H*E*AN*	PDH	T[L\	&D&'Q*+	V]]̂K]\\M	CD	D&)*H	F,-(*QQ'A*DN-	_'OF*A&-	R*H*	H*(*,E*+	&),-	FDA&)M		/̀_*A-*-U	aNHH*A&	FDA&)	+,-GNH-*F*A&-	R*H*	VXLK̂̂ IM	T,-('Q	O*'HZ&DZ+'&*	*̀_*A+,&NH*-	PDH	T[L\	&D&'Q	VYYbKLLbc	DP	R),()	VIXIKb\W	R'-	PDH	D_*H'&,AB	*̀_*A-*-M	/̀_*A+,&NH*-	+D	AD&	H*PQ*(&	'QQ	-&'PP	'A+	(DA-NQ&'A&	(D-&-	,A(NHH*+	GN&	AD&	O*&	G,QQ*+	&D	./01%	,A	T[L\M		a'-)U	d)*	('-)	G'Q'A(*	'&	CDE*FG*H	IJK	LJLI	R'-	VIKXbbK]W\M				eNGF,&&*+	GOU				f'(gN*Q,A*	h**	dH*'-NH*H			.'&*+U																		
ijk	lmn	lmlo

Attachment 2



���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	������������ �����
��	������������ �����������!� �����
��	����"���
�����#���$!�  %&% ��'��"���
�����#���( ��'��"���
�����#)*+,-*.,�/,012�3 4��������������������� 567896735������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 567896735��������� :6;<;6=>9���� ;635867=5�����)*+,-*.,�/,012�> 4��������������������� :677<63>9������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� :677<63>9��������� ;6<<>6>8:���� 8576<78��������)*+,-*.,�/,012�; 4��������������������� >6><8699;������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� >6><8699;��������� 3653=6>9:���� 78865==��������)*+,-*.,�/,012�: 4��������������������� 3683:6=7=������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3683:6=7=��������� ;8;68<7������� 36>736>5:�����)*+,-*.,�/,012�7 4��������������������� 36:;96==3������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 36:;96==3��������� >9963=7������� 36>;965=8�����)*+,-*.,�/,012�8 4��������������������� 8657=6<8=������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 8657=6<8=��������� :;965<:������� 86;>=69<7�����?@,0AB,.A�)-0.A 4��������������������� 3765;>65=:����� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3765;>65=:������� <6=:<6<:;���� 865<;6=73�����)CB+�DA0A*E.F 4��������������������� <678;6>=:������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� <678;6>=:��������� 8655868:<���� 365<868:8�����G0A,@�?0.HF 4��������������������� 3>6;=;6:<;����� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3>6;=;6:<;������� 56>>3677>���� 763536=;3�����)20F,�>�)*+,-*.,�I�)CB+�DA0A*E. 4��������������������� ;6:8>6=;<������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� ;6:8>6=;<��������� 4������������������� ;6:8>6=;<�����J01HKE.,�LE@@EF*E. 4��������������������� 3639=699:������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3639=699:��������� 3>>6;9>������� =<8659>��������DLMNM 4��������������������� ;:365>8���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� ;:365>8������������ 3=:65<:������� 3:86=:>��������OJPQN�)*+,-*.,�)20F,�>6�;�I: 4��������������������� 89>63=;���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 89>63=;������������ 4������������������� 89>63=;��������R*.,�D1@,,.*.S 4��������������������� =>56<33���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� =>56<33������������ 7><6<7>������� ;=<6=7=��������T,UV/,+-01,B,.A�L0+*A0-�W79X >996999��������� ;:568<;���������� 4������������������������ >;69;8������������ ;59653=������������ 377653>������� >376995��������PRVQY�LE.A@E-�)@ES@0B*.S�Q+Z0A, 4��������������������� 3::6;88���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3::6;88������������ <>6><=��������� 8>6955����������)@ES@0B�)-0..*.S�I�M*@�/,-*,[ 4��������������������� 76:=368>;������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 76:=368>;��������� >68=868<7���� >65=:6=;<�����)-0..*.S��)@*E@�\,0@F 4��������������������� ;68876;;9������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� ;68876;;9��������� 365=8693>���� 36<8=6;3<�����),@B0.,.A�DC++-]�DC++-̂� :;76999��������� 367<865>:������� 7:63=;�������������� 3756<53���������� 365::67=7��������� 369336<87���� 5;>65;9��������)D/43�YRN�/,+-01,B,.A 4��������������������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������M*@�/,-*,[�Y0-_,�/,20K*-*A0A*E.V/,+-01,B,.A 3;76999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������DRQY�0.Z�PR�̀+,@0A*E.0-�M.0-̂F*F 4��������������������� :76:55������������ 4������������������������ 4���������������������� :76:55�������������� >96=3=��������� >:677<����������L2-E@*.,�P*a,@�/,+-01,B,.A 4��������������������� 3;6333������������ 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3;6333�������������� 869;3����������� 569<9������������DRQY�L0K-,�b0@.,FF�/,+-01,B,.A >;6999����������� 3:=65<:���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3:=65<:������������ 8<6=93��������� <96<<;����������QY�c0B+�O-,1A@*10-�LE..,1AE@�/,+-01,B,.A 356999����������� 3>868;7���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3>868;7������������ 7<6>7>��������� 8<6;<;����������bYML�/,+-01,B,.AF 4��������������������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������?d)D�YRN�Q+S@0Z,F 3796999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������J01HU0F2�M.0-̂F*F >996999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������e0A,�/,+-01,B,.AF 3796999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������)*.,�Y0--,̂�?@0.FB*FF*E.�L0A2EZ*1�)@EA,1A*E. >;96999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������N,1EBB*FF*E.�P*1@E[*-A@0A*E.�R01*-*Â 796999����������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������PR�P,BK@0.,�/,+-01, 4��������������������� 8=<6<;;���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 8=<6<;;������������ ;;76::9������� ;8;6;=;��������cYMPGM�LE..,1A*E. 4��������������������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������8A2�/G?)�D0.Z�R*-A,@ 4��������������������� >77����������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� >77������������������� >5���������������� >><���������������NG/�d/GP4�)@E+�<:�/Z�;�N@ECS2A�)@Ef,1A 4��������������������� 386:;>������������ 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 386:;>�������������� <6>38����������� <6>38������������)D/3�V/,1̂]�G0A,@�?@,0AB,.A�Oa+0.F*E. 4��������������������� 3767><6>89����� 4������������������������ 56388�������������� 3767;76:>8������� =6<3=65;3���� 7653768=7�����)-,0F0.AE.�L0+*A0-�J*--*.SVLE.A*.S,.1̂ 4��������������������� 765=763;=������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 765=763;=��������� 4������������������� 765=763;=�����L0+*A0-*g,Z�d.A,@,FA 4��������������������� 36=896<5>������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 36=896<5>��������� =896<>5������� 3699969:7�����hijk�i��������� h��ikh�i��l��� j�ihk��������������� hmmi�n����������� h��ih��i�kk����� jhink�ik���� jhi��mi�jk���opqrstuvw�x�utqy ���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	�����������������
��	������������ �����������!� �����
��	����"���
�����#���$!�  %&% ���'��"���
�����#���( ��'��"���
�����#NO/GM�)@ES@0B�P0.0S,@ >:76999��������� :698;68;:������� >6>55���������������� 3;6587������������ :69556;==��������� >6=>76398���� 3637>6>=;�����?@,0FC@,@ 3936999��������� ;69:767:5������� 86;9;���������������� >36;87������������ ;69886=3>��������� >6;9963<:���� 58865><��������c,S0-�LEC.F,- >76999����������� 7856735���������� 4������������������������ 3968<9������������ 75<63=5������������ :;;68:<������� 3::67:=��������D,1@,A0@̂ 3<6999����������� >5>6759���������� 4������������������������ >=3����������������� >5>6<83������������ >9:68:8������� 8<6>37����������À2,@ 3;76999��������� 36=5>69;9������� 4������������������������ 3;=6;9>���������� >63336;;>��������� 367<;6799���� 7>56<;>��������+̀,@0A*E.�0.Z�P0*.A,.0.1,�N,A0*- 765>76999������ ;96<9<6><7����� 4������������������������ 35565:7���������� ;96=<869;9������� >;67<963::�� 56:976<<8�����N,KA�D,@_*1, 368:7673;������ ;96>7868>8����� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� ;96>7868>8������� 38637868=8�� 3:69==6=;9���nimk�ijh������� n�ikmli��k����� mijm����������������� �l�ih�m���������� nhi��ki�jn������� �nihm�ik���� ��ihlji�������&z{�����z�|}% ki�m�ijh� hn�ik��i��j l�inn� jjhi��h hn�i�jhiljl kmiknniml� nji�n�ink�&�~��(�%����(� ��" �	����������� �����#�����MS,.1̂�LE.A@*KCA*E.ND/DN 4��������������������� 4����������������������OJPQN 4��������������������� 4����������������������)-,0F0.AE. 4��������������������� 4����������������������MS,.1̂�/,*BKC@F,B,.AF�4�ND/DN ;5865:9��������� ;<=678>����������MS,.1̂�/,*BKC@F,B,.AF�4�OJPQN >9>65<;��������� >996<57����������LEBB,@1*0-�)0+,@�dFFC,Z 4��������������������� 4����������������������)-,0F0.AE.�+0̂B,.AF >756989��������� ;=56<=7����������d.A,@,FA�V�LE.A@01AF 4��������������������� =683>��������������P*F1�d.1EB, 4��������������������� 4����������������������?̀ ?Mc�/OYOTQOD�I�RQTNdTe <;867<;��������� ==56=::����������LMDb�MYMdcMJcO �	����������� �����#�����J,S*..*.S�L0F2 >6<;<635:������ 36;=;6:==������� )@,+0@,Z�K̂������������������������������������J,S]�J0-0.1,�MZf��)@*E@�\,0@�M11@C0-F� 4��������������������� 36553658>������� ����������������������������P0AA�bEC1H N0A,/EC.Z*.S 4��������������������� 4����������������������/,_*,U,Z�K̂���������������������������������������������������������������P,-EẐ�G0.S N0A,?EA0-�/,_,.C,F�I�RC.Z*.S <;867<;��������� ==56=::����������?EA0-�Oa+,.Z*AC@,F �8>655;����������� �7736>>3���������� M++@E_,Z�K̂�����������������������������������O.Z*.S�L0F2 ;68336=<:������ ;68336=<:������� ����������������������������N0_*Z�e-0FF,@ N0A,9

����#�z������������������#�����

�|���|}����&z{���

����#�������#��������������#�����

 %&% ����( �&����}� ��|��&�|(��z&����&�|%(&�&�%�&��z&��z&�������&�z ��� � ��z~����&���i�����

������������������������������������



����� ����� ����� ��	�
��� ��� ����� ����� �������� !�����"��	� #$%&�� �%�$'	 �%�$'	 �%�$'	(()*+),- ,***.*((. /0123 ��456���45!78�59::�;<+=<>)-(=->? ,@+->=AB (@A.<=+A5555555555555 ++A=*+5555555555555555 � ,@+->=AB *=**(()*+),- ,***.**B* 09CC/66502DEF/DD5D/CGE!/D5EF! ��4H� 51��� ��4D��II5;<A)-(? -<-=*( ,>*=.+5555555555555555 ((,=>-5555555555555555 � -<-=*( *=**(()(>),- ,***.*-B, 0C�JF5K5!9L3J/LL !��545H�M5DN��"5J��5DN�5;>+).,? ->@B+A=*A ,*@B>B=<B55555555555 (>@*-(=.,55555555555 ! *=** ->@B+A=*A(()(>),- ,***.*.(( /0123 ��456���45!78�59::�;<+=<>)-(=->? ,@A,(=A- ,@**>=A*5555555555555 A(<=*-5555555555555555 � ,@A,(=A- *=**(()(>),- ,***.*-<( 09CC/66502DEF/DD5D/CGE!/D5EF! ��4H� 51��� ��4D��II5;<A)-(? <,B=*( .-,=<.5555555555555555 (A.=-B5555555555555555 � <,B=*( *=**(()(>),- ,***.*-<( 09CC/66502DEF/DD5D/CGE!/D5EF! ��4H� 51��� ��4D��II5;<A)-(? <<*=*( .>>=.(5555555555555555 ,*.=<*5555555555555555 � <<*=*( *=**((),,),- ,***.*B>( L9F!/5D�LL5K5L2FOP9C35LLH ��456���45!78�59::�;<+=<>)-(=->? >.>=** -B.=(.5555555555555555 (B*=+<5555555555555555 � >.>=** *=**((),,),- ,***.*B>( 09CC/66502DEF/DD5D/CGE!/D5EF! ��4H� 51��� ��4D��II5;<A)-(? <,B=*( .-,=<.5555555555555555 (A.=-B5555555555555555 � <,B=*( *=**((),A),- ,***.*AB. 0C�JF5K5!9L3J/LL !��545H�M5DN��"5J��5DN�5;>+).,? (+@.*-=<. (*@<B.=((55555555555 B@B,A=>-5555555555555 ! *=** (+@.*-=<.4555555555555555555555 4555555555555555555555 *=** *=**4555555555555555555555 4555555555555555555555 *=** *=**4555555555555555555555 4555555555555555555555 *=** *=**4555555555555555555555 4555555555555555555555 *=** *=**<,@BB,=<B -B@-,A=++ ,>@..,=BA +@>BA=A. >.@(A,=B-!����I�:���857I53�8Q=JR5/�S�� 55559M7N��(()+),- -@(A+=A+T555555555 H"��8���7�45 4555555555555555555555(()(>),- -A@AA+=*.T5555555 5 *=**C�:7�:�"�S((),,),- (@(B,=*(T555555555 *=**C�:7�:�"�S((),A),- (+@.*-=<.T5555555 *=**C�:7�:�"�S�H +@>BA=A.5555555555555 *=**C�:7�:�"�S!9H >.@(A,=B-55555555555<,@BB,=<BT5555555555

�����U�����5���V����5W���5��X��YV������V5�Z5�[��#�Y����5Z��5X�5���Y��5�#���#�\�%&��5]̂_5̀̂ ]̀



����������	
������ ������ ������������ ������� !�"�#��$%�&'�(�)**�+,+-,.�/0,12345�2617.8-97861:;<=>?@�A=BCDEFG=C=>HG�I�JKAKJ ��L��MN��L;<=>?@�A=BCDEFG=C=>HG�I�OPQRJ �N������L�SBH@�TU�VW=XGX>HT>�VX@C=>HG ����N�����Y>H=F=GH�Y>?TC= N�NNZH[=F�A=BCDEFG=C=>HGI�QBG? N�NN\,55�81]682,�̂/3+,175:OPQRJ ��_�_�N�� �̀�������aP;AAObb�PRKYcOKK�KOAdYSOK�YcS ��_�_�N�� �̀L��N�aPAZec�f�S;gJeOgg ��_��_�N�� �̀������N�aOPQRJ ��_��_�N�� �̀�������aP;AAObb�PRKYcOKK�KOAdYSOK�YcS ��_��_�N�� L̀���N�aP;AAObb�PRKYcOKK�KOAdYSOK�YcS ��_��_�N�� L̀LN�N�ag;cSO�KZgg�f�gRchi;AJ�ggV ��_��_�N�� �̀M��NNaP;AAObb�PRKYcOKK�KOAdYSOK�YcS ��_��_�N�� L̀���N�aPAZec�f�S;gJeOgg ��_��_�N�� �̀��MN��LMa����������	
������ ������ �jkjlmno���������������ATE>pB>< Ǹ�N�a������������������������������������	
������� �jkjlmno����������������

qrstu��uvw�srxysz



�����������	��
�
���	����	���������	�����������	������	���	��
�����	���	 ! �		���""	��#���			$%%&'()*	+,	%()	-./0$	12345623275	839:2;	<:2	;=3	>:?;=	)@*+@A	-)')BC)D	EFG	HIHEJ	$	,KBB&DL	MN	%D&@,&'%+M@,	&@*	D)'MBB)@*&%+M@	NMOOMP,J		/)Q)@K),RSK@*+@AT	-KD+@A	%()	BM@%(G	UFEVGFWF	+@	&A)@'L	D)+BCKD,)B)@%,	P)D)	D)')+Q)*J	S+,'&O	L)&DX%MX*&%)	D)Q)@K)	D)')+Q)*	NMD	SYHZ	%M%&O)*	UFGFEWGFF[J	\M	M%()D	B+,')OO&@)MK,	]&LB)@%,	P)D)	D)')+Q)*	%(+,	BM@%(J		.̂])@,),T	_KDD)@%	BM@%(	*+,CKD,)B)@%,	P)D)	UFWGF̀FJ	S+,'&O	L)&DX%MX*&%)	)̂])@*+%KD),	NMD	SYHZ	%M%&O	U[̀aGEaHb	MN	P(+'(	UEaIGEIV	P&,	NMD	M])D&%+@A	)̂])@,),J	.̂])@*+%KD),	*M	@M%	D)NO)'%	&OO	,%&NN	&@*	'M@,KO%&@%	'M,%,	+@'KDD)*	CK%	@M%	L)%	C+OO)*	%M	-./0$	+@	SYHZJ		_&,(T	c()	'&,(	C&O&@')	&%	-)')BC)D	EFG	HIHE	P&,	UEGWEEGVVZJ				dKCB+%%)*	CLT				e&'fK)O+@)	g))	cD)&,KD)D			-&%)*T																		
hij	klm	nonp

Attachment 3



���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	������������ �����
��	������������ �����������!� �����
��	����"���
�����#���$!�  %&% ��'��"���
�����#���( ��'��"���
�����#)*+,-*.,�/,012�3 4��������������������� 567896735������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 567896735��������� :6;<;6=>9���� ;635867=5�����)*+,-*.,�/,012�> 4��������������������� :677<63>9������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� :677<63>9��������� ;6<<>6>8:���� 8576<78��������)*+,-*.,�/,012�; 4��������������������� >6><8699;������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� >6><8699;��������� 3653=6>9:���� 78865==��������)*+,-*.,�/,012�: 4��������������������� 3683:6=7=������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3683:6=7=��������� ;8;68<7������� 36>736>5:�����)*+,-*.,�/,012�7 4��������������������� 36:;96==3������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 36:;96==3��������� >9963=7������� 36>;965=8�����)*+,-*.,�/,012�8 4��������������������� 8657=6<8=������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 8657=6<8=��������� :;965<:������� 86;>=69<7�����?@,0AB,.A�)-0.A 4��������������������� 3765;>65=:����� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3765;>65=:������� <6=:<6<:;���� 865<;6=73�����)CB+�DA0A*E.F 4��������������������� <678;6>=:������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� <678;6>=:��������� 8655868:<���� 365<868:8�����G0A,@�?0.HF 4��������������������� 3>6;=;6:<;����� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3>6;=;6:<;������� 56>>3677>���� 763536=;3�����)20F,�>�)*+,-*.,�I�)CB+�DA0A*E. 4��������������������� ;6:8>6=;<������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� ;6:8>6=;<��������� 4������������������� ;6:8>6=;<�����J01HKE.,�LE@@EF*E. 4��������������������� 3639=699:������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3639=699:��������� 3>>6;9>������� =<8659>��������DLMNM 4��������������������� ;:365>8���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� ;:365>8������������ 3=:65<:������� 3:86=:>��������OJPQN�)*+,-*.,�)20F,�>6�;�I: 4��������������������� 89>63=;���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 89>63=;������������ 4������������������� 89>63=;��������R*.,�D1@,,.*.S 4��������������������� =>56<33���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� =>56<33������������ 7><6<7>������� ;=<6=7=��������T,UV/,+-01,B,.A�L0+*A0-�W79X >996999��������� ;:568<;���������� 4������������������������ >;69;8������������ ;59653=������������ 377653>������� >376995��������PRVQY�LE.A@E-�)@ES@0B*.S�Q+Z0A, 4��������������������� 3::6;88���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3::6;88������������ <>6><=��������� 8>6955����������)@ES@0B�)-0..*.S�I�M*@�/,-*,[ 4��������������������� 76:=368>;������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 76:=368>;��������� >68=868<7���� >65=:6=;<�����)-0..*.S��)@*E@�\,0@F 4��������������������� ;68876;;9������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� ;68876;;9��������� 365=8693>���� 36<8=6;3<�����),@B0.,.A�DC++-]�DC++-̂� :;76999��������� 367<865>:������� 4������������������������ 3756<53���������� 365::67=7��������� 369336<87���� 5;>65;9��������)D/43�YRN�/,+-01,B,.A 4��������������������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������M*@�/,-*,[�Y0-_,�/,20K*-*A0A*E.V/,+-01,B,.A 3;76999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������DRQY�0.Z�PR�̀+,@0A*E.0-�M.0-̂F*F 4��������������������� :76:55������������ 4������������������������ 4���������������������� :76:55�������������� >96=3=��������� >:677<����������L2-E@*.,�P*a,@�/,+-01,B,.A 4��������������������� 3;6333������������ 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3;6333�������������� 869;3����������� 569<9������������DRQY�L0K-,�b0@.,FF�/,+-01,B,.A >;6999����������� 3:=65<:���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3:=65<:������������ 8<6=93��������� <96<<;����������QY�c0B+�O-,1A@*10-�LE..,1AE@�/,+-01,B,.A 356999����������� 3>868;7���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 3>868;7������������ 7<6>7>��������� 8<6;<;����������bYML�/,+-01,B,.AF 4��������������������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������?d)D�YRN�Q+S@0Z,F 3796999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������J01HU0F2�M.0-̂F*F >996999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������e0A,�/,+-01,B,.AF 3796999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������)*.,�Y0--,̂�?@0.FB*FF*E.�L0A2EZ*1�)@EA,1A*E. >;96999��������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������N,1EBB*FF*E.�P*1@E[*-A@0A*E.�R01*-*Â 796999����������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������PR�P,BK@0.,�/,+-01, 4��������������������� 8=<6<;;���������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 8=<6<;;������������ ;;76::9������� ;8;6;=;��������cYMPGM�LE..,1A*E. 4��������������������� 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 4������������������������ 4������������������� 4��������������������8A2�/G?)�D0.Z�R*-A,@ 4��������������������� >77����������������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� >77������������������� >5���������������� >><���������������NG/�d/GP4�)@E+�<:�/Z�;�N@ECS2A�)@Ef,1A 4��������������������� 386:;>������������ 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 386:;>�������������� <6>38����������� <6>38������������)D/3�V/,1̂]�G0A,@�?@,0AB,.A�Oa+0.F*E. 4��������������������� 3767><6>89����� 4������������������������ 56388�������������� 3767;76:>8������� =6<3=65;3���� 7653768=7�����)-,0F0.AE.�L0+*A0-�J*--*.SVLE.A*.S,.1̂ 4��������������������� 765=763;=������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 765=763;=��������� 4������������������� 765=763;=�����L0+*A0-*g,Z�d.A,@,FA 4��������������������� 36=896<5>������� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� 36=896<5>��������� =896<>5������� 3699969:7�����hijk�i��������� h��ikh�i��l��� m������������������������ hnni�o����������� h��ih��i�kk����� jhiok�ik���� jhi��ni�jk���pqrstuvwx�y�vurz ���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	�����������������
��	������������ �����������!� �����
��	����"���
�����#���$!�  %&% ���'��"���
�����#���( ��'��"���
�����#NO/GM�)@ES@0B�P0.0S,@ >:76999��������� :698;68;:������� 56<8:���������������� >368>=������������ :69<76>8;��������� >6=>=6575���� 363776798�����?@,0FC@,@ 3936999��������� ;69:767:5������� >675<���������������� >;6=:;������������ ;698=6:=9��������� >6;9>6335���� 5856;5;��������c,S0-�LEC.F,- >76999����������� 7856735���������� 8653=���������������� 356;==������������ 7<:6=38������������ :;<68<5������� 3:86>>=��������D,1@,A0@̂ 3<6999����������� >5>6759���������� 4������������������������ >=3����������������� >5>6<83������������ >9:68:8������� 8<6>37����������À2,@ 3;76999��������� 36=5>69;9������� 4������������������������ 3;=6;9>���������� >63336;;>��������� 367<;6799���� 7>56<;>��������+̀,@0A*E.�0.Z�P0*.A,.0.1,�N,A0*- 765>76999������ ;96<9<6><7����� 4������������������������ 35565:7���������� ;96=<869;9������� >;67<963::�� 56:976<<8�����N,KA�D,@_*1, 368:7673;������ ;96>7868>8����� 4������������������������ 4���������������������� ;96>7868>8������� 38637868=8�� 3:69==6=;9���oink�ijh������� o�iknli��k����� hoihlh�������������� �n�i��k���������� ohi�llijhn������� �oihkjij�o�� ��iho�ikoh����&{|�����{�}~% ki�n�ijh� ho�ik��i��j hoihlh jlni�n� ho�i�lninho kniknki�no oji�oki���&����(�%����(� ��" �	����������� �����#�����MS,.1̂�LE.A@*KCA*E.ND/DN 4��������������������� 4����������������������OJPQN 4��������������������� 4����������������������)-,0F0.AE. 4��������������������� 4����������������������MS,.1̂�/,*BKC@F,B,.AF�4�ND/DN 3;=6353��������� 7><65;:����������MS,.1̂�/,*BKC@F,B,.AF�4�OJPQN 4��������������������� >996<57����������LEBB,@1*0-�)0+,@�dFFC,Z 4��������������������� 4����������������������)-,0F0.AE.�+0̂B,.AF 4��������������������� ;=56<=:����������d.A,@,FA�V�LE.A@01AF 4��������������������� =683>��������������P*F1�d.1EB, 4��������������������� 4����������������������?̀ ?Mc�/OYOTQOD�I�RQTNdTe 3;=6353��������� 363;56337�������LMDb�MYMdcMJcO �	����������� �����#�����J,S*..*.S�L0F2 ;68336=<:������ 36;=;6:==������� )@,+0@,Z�K̂������������������������������������J,S]�J0-0.1,�MZf��)@*E@�\,0@�M11@C0-F� 4��������������������� 36553658>������� ����������������������������P0AA�bEC1H N0A,/EC.Z*.S 4��������������������� 4����������������������/,_*,U,Z�K̂���������������������������������������������������������������P,-EẐ�G0.S N0A,?EA0-�/,_,.C,F�I�RC.Z*.S 3;=6353��������� 363;56337�������?EA0-�Oa+,.Z*AC@,F �356383����������� �78<6;<>���������� M++@E_,Z�K̂�����������������������������������O.Z*.S�L0F2 ;65;;6==:������ ;65;;6==:������� ����������������������������N0_*Z�e-0FF,@ N0A,9

����#�{������������������#�����

�}���}~�m��&{|���

����#�������#��������������#�����

 %&% ����( �&����~� ��}��&�}(��{&����&�}%(&�&�%�&��{&��{&�������&�{ ��� � � ������&��hi�����

������������������������������������



����� ����� ����� ��	�
��� ��� ����� ����� �������� !�����"��	� #$%&�� �%�$'	 �%�$'	 �%�$'	()*+,*)- )+++.(.+/ 01223445067893775732:8!37589! ��;<� 5=��� ��;7��>>5?,@*-(A ,@-B+( .CDB(D5555555555555555 )(.BD-5555555555555555 � ,@-B+( +B++()*+,*)- )+++.(.+/ 01223445067893775732:8!37589! ��;<� 5=��� ��;7��>>5?,@*-(A (E+D@B+) C/(B.)5555555555555555 --CB,+5555555555555555 � (E+D@B+) +B++()*+,*)- )+++.(./( F�G93H50219FE5II< ��;F��J�5I� �"5!KL�M�"5?,@*-(A )E.++B++ (E,/,B++5555555555555 C..B++5555555555555555 � )E.++B++ +B++()*))*)- )+++.).,) 8!N5894329148�91I ��;<� 5= �;<LO"�P58�>K5?.@*/(A (E(D(B)/ /CDBD(5555555555555555 ,+)B..5555555555555555 � (E(D(B)/ +B++()*)+*)- )+++.))/- 8!N5894329148�91I ��;<� 5= �;<LO"�P58�>K5?.@*/(A (E@+CB/+ @-.B,D5555555555555555 @C)BD)5555555555555555 � (E@+CB/+ +B++()*)+*)- )+++.))/- 8!N5894329148�91I ��;<� 5= �;<LO"�P58�>K5?.@*/(A (E),-BC/ ,(@B).5555555555555555 ,..B/(5555555555555555 � (E),-BC/ +B++()*)+*)- )+++.)(@D 01223445067893775732:8!37589! ��;<� 5=��� ��;7��>>5?,@*-(A ,)CB+( .-)B,.5555555555555555 (@.B-C5555555555555555 � ,)CB+( +B++()*))*)- )+++.).)) 01223445067893775732:8!37589! ��;<� 5=��� ��;7��>>5?,@*-(A ,,+B+( .//B.(5555555555555555 )+.B,+5555555555555555 � ,,+B+( +B++()*)@*)- )+++.),-+ 30=6F ��;54���;5!KM�51PP�?,@*-(A )E/CDB(, (ECCDB@-5555555555555 C@@B)-5555555555555555 � )E/CDB(, +B++()*)@*)- )+++.),D+ 8!N5894329148�91I ��;<� 5= �;<LO"�P58�>K5?.@*/(A ..)B/+ )(,BD-5555555555555555 ))/B,C5555555555555555 � ..)B/+ +B++()*)@*)- )+++.),). F�G93H50219FE5II< ��;F��J�5I� �"5!KL�M�"5?,@*-(A .E-(@B)C )E@D+B-+5555555555555 (E--DB@C5555555555555 � .E-(@B)C +B++;555555555555555555555 ;555555555555555555555 +B++ +B++;555555555555555555555 ;555555555555555555555 +B++ +B++(CE(,(B.D (+EDD)B.. ,E)C@B+. (CE(,(B.D +B++!����>�P���M5K>5F�MOBGQ53�R�� 55551SKL��()*,*). .E(D)B+-T555555555 <"��M���K�;5 ;555555555555555555555()*)+*). -EC@DB),T555555555 5 +B++2�PK�P�"�R()*))*). (ED.(B),T555555555 +B++2�PK�P�"�R()*)@*). CE--@B@-T555555555 +B++2�PK�P�"�R�< (CE(,(B.D55555555555 +B++2�PK�P�"�R!1< ;555555555555555555555(CE(,(B.DT5555555555

�����U�����5���V����5W���5��X��YV������V5�Z5�[��#�Y����5Z��5X�5���Y��5�#�������%&��5\]̂5_̀_\



����������	
������ ������ ������������ ������� !�"�#��$%�&'�(�)**�+,+-,.�/0,12345�2617.8-97861:;<=>?@�A=BCDEFG=C=>HG�I�JKAKJ �����L���L;<=>?@�A=BCDEFG=C=>HG�I�MNOPJ ����QBH@�RS�TU=VGV>HR>�TV@C=>HG ����W>H=F=GH�W>?RC= ����XHY=F�A=BCDEFG=C=>HGI�OBG? ����Z,55�81[682,�\/3+,175:N;AAM]]�NPKŴMKK�KMA_WQMK�ŴQ �̀a�à�̀� b������cN;AAM]]�NPKŴMKK�KMA_WQMK�ŴQ �̀a�à�̀� b�������̀cJXd M̂e�NA;̂ J��ffT �̀a�à�̀� b̀�������cWQg�Ŵ]MÂ ;]WX̂ ;f �̀à̀ à�̀� b������̀hcWQg�Ŵ]MÂ ;]WX̂ ;f �̀à�à�̀� b����L�h�cWQg�Ŵ]MÂ ;]WX̂ ;f �̀à�à�̀� b��̀���LhcN;AAM]]�NPKŴMKK�KMA_WQMK�ŴQ �̀à�à�̀� b�̀L���cN;AAM]]�NPKŴMKK�KMA_WQMK�ŴQ �̀à̀ à�̀� b������cMNOPJ �̀à�à�̀� b̀�hL����cWQg�Ŵ]MÂ ;]WX̂ ;f �̀à�à�̀� b��̀�h�cJXd M̂e�NA;̂ J��ffT �̀à�à�̀� b������̀Lc����������	
������ ������ �ij��ikklm����������������ARE>nB>< b��̀�c������������������������������������	
������� �ij��ikklm����������������

opqrs��stu�qpvwqx



Item 7.C 

Prepared by JL         Reviewed by RGS 

 
 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

  
      Approve Quarterly Investment Report for December 31, 2023 

 
Summary: 
 
Section 53646 of the Government Code allows the Treasurer of the Authority to submit 
to the Authority Manager, the Internal Auditor, and the Board of Directors a quarterly 
investment report. It also stipulates that the investment report must include the types of 
investments in which the Authority has invested its funds, the issuer, date of maturity, 
the value of the investment at maturity, and the dollar amount that is invested in the 
security.  
 
The investments held by the Authority in the State of California Local Agency Investment 
Fund on December 31, 2023, were $1,034,741. The investment portfolio is in full 
compliance with the Board’s adopted policy regarding the Authority’s investments. 
 
In compliance with Section 53646(b)3 of the Government Code, this report denotes that 
the Authority will be able to meet expenditure requirements for the next six months from 
revenues/reimbursements/contributions from Member Agencies. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Treasurer recommends the DERWA Board of Directors approve, by Motion, the 
Quarterly Investment Report for December 31, 2023. 
 
February 5, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Item 7.D 

Prepared by JWL Reviewed by RGS 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

   Adopt New Cash Reserves Policy 

Summary: 

Staff recommends the DERWA Board of Directors adopt the new Cash Reserves policy to 
maintain operating reserves at a level sufficient to meet working capital and unanticipated 
needs. The draft policy was discussed with the DERWA Board at the December 11, 2023, 
DERWA Board meeting.  

Staff proposes maintaining cash reserves at a target of four (4) times monthly budgeted 
operating expenses, inclusive of debt service. Cash in excess of the target reserve amount may 
be disbursed to member agencies at fiscal year-end. For the fiscal year (FY) 2024, the 
proposed target cash reserve is $2,632,000. The FY 2024 proposed target cash reserve meets 
and exceeds the minimum cash reserve of $1,234,000 per DERWA Resolution No. 04-3 to fund 
the Recycled Water Capital Reserve Account (RWCRA) per State Water Resources Control 
Board requirements. 

Recommendation: 

The Treasurer recommends the DERWA Board of Directors adopt, by Resolution, the new Cash 
Reserves policy.  

February 5, 2024 

Attachment: 

1. DERWA Resolution No. 24-1



     Attachment 1 

   
 

DERWA 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-1 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DSRSD•EBMUD RECYCLED 
WATER AUTHORITY ADOPTING THE NEW CASH RESERVES POLICY 
  

 WHEREAS, by a joint powers authority agreement (“JPA Agreement”), the Dublin San 

Ramon Services District (“DSRSD”) and East Bay Municipal Utility District (“EBMUD”) (together, 

the “Member Agencies”) formed the DSRSD●EBMUD Recycled Water Authority (“DERWA”) in 

1995 to implement a joint regional recycled water program; and 

WHEREAS, DERWA desires to have a Cash Reserves policy to maintain operating 

reserves at a level sufficient to meet working capital; and  

WHEREAS, the Treasurer has prepared the Cash Reserves policy for the DERWA 

Board’s consideration and approval, which was reviewed by the DERWA Board on December 

11, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, the Cash Reserves policy targets maintaining cash reserves of four (4) 

times monthly budgeted operating and maintenance expenses, inclusive of debt service; and  

WHEREAS, funds in excess of the target reserve amount will be disbursed to the 

Member Agencies based on actual expenses paid at fiscal year-end. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

DSRSD-EBMUD RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY, a Joint Powers Authority located in the 

counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California, that the new Cash Reserves policy, which is 

attached as Exhibit “A,” is hereby adopted by the DERWA Board as the policy to be used for all 

cash reserves transactions with implementation at fiscal year-end 2024.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority, 

a Joint Powers Authority located in the counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California, at its 

Regular Meeting held on the 5th day of February 2024, and passed by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 
   
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 

             
       _________________________________ 
                                                                        DERWA Chair 

   
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Nicole M. Genzale, Authority Secretary 



POLICY- CASH RESERVES   EFFECTIVE 
February 5, 2024 

IT IS THE POLICY OF DERWA TO: 

Maintain cash reserves at a target of four (4) times monthly budgeted operating and maintenance 
expenses, inclusive of debt service.  

Disburse funds in excess of the target reserve amount to the Member Agencies based on actual 
expenses paid at fiscal year-end. 

Authority: Resolution No. 24-1, February 5, 2024 

Exhibit A



  Item 8.A 

Prepared by RT  Reviewed by RGS 
 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Receive Presentation on EBMUD-Central San Recycled  
                 Water Feasibility Evaluation 

 
 

Summary:  
 
East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) has a goal of recycling 20 million gallons per day 
(MGD) by 2040. EBMUD’s 2019 Recycled Water Master Plan Update evaluated EBMUD’s 
existing recycled water program, identified and assessed both non-potable and potable reuse 
opportunities, and recommended continuing with a portfolio of non-potable projects to achieve 
its goal. Central Contra Costa Sanitary District (Central San) was identified as a potential 
partner for regional recycled water opportunities with EBMUD. In 2022, EBMUD entered into a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Central San to prepare a feasibility evaluation of 
recycled water partnership opportunities, including the potential for potable reuse and long-term 
diversion of a portion of Central San’s wastewater upstream of the San Ramon Pumping Station 
to DERWA.  
 
The feasibility evaluation developed project descriptions, water supply yields, preliminary 
layouts, cost estimates, and non-cost scores for each potential project concept, incorporating 
input from EBMUD and Central San staff. The study evaluated the following project concepts: 

• Lamorinda Project  
• Satellite Water Recycled Facility Projects 
• San Ramon Valley Recycled Water Program Expansion  
• Refinery Exchange Project 
• Indirect Potable Reuse (IPR) via Los Vaqueros Reservoir 
• IPR via Briones Reservoir 
• Direct Potable Reuse (DPR) via Mokelumne Aqueducts 
• DPR via Walnut Creek Treatment Plant 

 
The Central San recycled water feasibility evaluation recommended that the San Ramon Valley 
Recycled Water Program expansion (including permanent operation of the existing temporary 
raw water diversion from Central San to DERWA), IPR via Briones Reservoir, and DPR via both 
Mokelumne Aqueducts and the Walnut Creek Treatment Plant be further considered in the 
EBMUD Recycled Water Strategic Plan Update 2024 (Strategic Plan Update). The 
recommended projects from this feasibility evaluation will be considered against all other 
recycled water alternatives identified in the Strategic Plan Update to develop a new portfolio of 
projects to meet the EBMUD’s water recycling goal for EBMUD Board consideration in summer 
of 2024. The final report of the Strategic Plan Update will be completed in September 2024. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Authority Manager recommends the DERWA Board of Directors receive a presentation on 
the EBMUD-Central San Recycled Water Feasibility Evaluation. 
 
Attachment: 
  

1. EBMUD-Central San Recycled Water Feasibility Evaluation Presentation 
 



`

Photo caption example (Arial 18 pt. italic)

EBMUD-Central San 
Recycled Water Feasibility 
Evaluation Update
DERWA Board Meeting

February 5, 2024

Attachment 1



© 2024 EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

Agenda
• Background

• Summary of Project Concept Evaluation

• DERWA-Central San Diversion Project

• Next Steps

2



© 2024 EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

Background

3

• Central Contra Costa Sanitary District (Central San) identified 
as potential partner for regional recycled water opportunities in 
EBMUD’s 2019 Recycled Water Master Plan Update

• Memorandum of Understanding between EBMUD and Central 
San executed in October 2022 to further explore recycled 
water partnership opportunities

• Evaluate non-potable and potable reuse project concepts
• EBMUD to lead development of the feasibility study



Summary of Project Concept 
Evaluation



© 2024 EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

Project Concept Average Capacity/Yield Estimated Unit Cost 
($/AF)

Recommend for Consideration of 
Near-Term Implementation in Recycled 

Water Strategic Plan Update?

Lamorinda Project <1 MGD/1,000 AFY $18,500 No – significant cost, low amount of 
potable water savings

Satellite Water Recycling 
Facilities <0.5 MGD/250 AFY per customer $9,500 Continue to support customers 

considering self-funding satellite projects

DERWA Expansion Up to 3 MGD/2,200 AFY $1,350 Yes – lower cost project, proof of concept 
through temporary diversions

Refinery Recycled Water 
Exchange

Up to 13 MGD to refineries
Yield to EBMUD through exchange: 
Up to 6.5 MGD/ 7,300 AFY

$5,600
No – water supply benefit to EBMUD is 
limited, uncertainty associated with future 
refinery demands/operations

Non-Potable Reuse Project Summary

MGD = million gallons per day
AFY = acre-feet per year
AF = acre-feet



© 2024 EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

Potable Reuse Project Summary
Project Concept Average Capacity/Yield Estimated Unit Cost 

($/AF)
Recommend for Further Evaluation in 

Recycled Water Strategic Plan Update?

Indirect Potable Reuse – 
Los Vaqueros Reservoir

Up to 17.9 MGD/20,000 AFY in 
supply to Los Vaqueros $4,700 No – significant institutional and 

permitting challenges

Indirect Potable Reuse – 
Briones Reservoir 17.9 MGD/20,000 AFY $3,700 Yes – compare against other IPR 

alternatives

Direct Potable Reuse – 
Mokelumne Aqueducts 17.9 MGD/20,000 AFY $3,600 Yes – compare against other DPR 

alternatives

Direct Potable Reuse – 
Walnut Creek WTP 17.9 MGD/20,000 AFY $3,900 Yes – compare against other DPR 

alternatives

MGD = million gallons per day
AFY = acre-feet per year
AF = acre-feet



© 2024 EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 7

Projects for Further Consideration

Highest scoring, 
lowest cost

Note: Lamorinda Project and Satellite 
Projects estimated at ~2x the unit cost 
of other projects and are not shown



DERWA-Central San Diversion 
Project



© 2024 EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

DERWA-Central San Diversion Project

9

• Benefits: utilizes existing facilities, provides up to 3 MGD in supplemental supply 
to DERWA to serve EBMUD/Central San customers, potential to provide 
incidental nutrient removal benefits to Central San

• Challenge: potential institutional barriers among three agencies involved



© 2024 EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 10

• Staff initiated discussions to evaluate permanent Central San 
diversion to DERWA

• Need to resolve institutional concerns relating to Proposition 218 and 
service area, and evaluate including Central San as a partner in DERWA

• Need to conduct technical study on the wastewater flow diversion, including 
total inorganic nitrogen (TIN) load diverted and adapting the diversion 
volume to the demand

• Once the institutional and technical issues are addressed, develop the long-
term agreement for the project

• Target completion by end of calendar year 2024

DERWA-Central San Diversion Project (Cont.)



© 2024 EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

Next Steps

11

• Recommended projects to be further evaluated in EBMUD’s 
upcoming Recycled Water Strategic Plan (RWSP) Update

• EBMUD Board workshop – preliminary update in February 2024
• EBMUD Board briefing – recommend final RWSP in summer 2024

• Briefing to Central San Board – March 2024
• Evaluate the DERWA-Central San diversion project, address 

issues identified and develop long-term agreement



© 2022 EAST BAY MUD MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT. CONFIDENTIAL. DO NOT 
DISTRIBUTE.

Questions?



Item 8.B 
 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Approve the First Amendment to the Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and  
Sale of Recycled Water Between the Dublin San Ramon Services District•East Bay 

Municipal Utility District Recycled Water Authority, Dublin San Ramon Services District, 
and East Bay Municipal Utility District 

 
 
Summary: 
 
In early 2020, Dublin San Ramon Services District (DSRSD), East Bay Municipal Utility District 
(EBMUD), and DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority (DERWA) initiated negotiations to 
amend agreements (“DERWA Agreements”) related to the supply and sale of recycled water for 
the DERWA Program that currently provides recycled water to the cities of Dublin, San Ramon, 
and Pleasanton.  The DERWA agreements need to be updated to reflect the current operational 
conditions of DERWA and adapt to the shortfall in recycled water supply available to meet 
DERWA’s future buildout demands.   
 
In September 2021, the DERWA Board agreed with a staff recommendation to defer 
negotiations on a comprehensive update of the DERWA agreements until 2024.  The additional 
time would be used to develop more detailed projections of future wastewater flows and 
recycled water demands and identify strategies for managing demands and securing long-term 
supplemental supplies for the DERWA Program.  Based on this shift in approach, on March 29, 
2022, the parties executed a short-term, Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of 
Recycled Water (“Interim Agreement”), which addresses certain issues that may arise in the 
near-term and captures concepts that the parties have identified for inclusion in future 
negotiations.   
 
Since the Interim Agreement was executed, DERWA has been working with a consultant to 
prepare the Recycled Water Supply and Operations Plan Update.  This study incorporates new 
and refined information on supply and demand to create a roadmap for implementing strategies 
to meet future recycled water demands.  In addition, EBMUD is in the process of finalizing an 
evaluation of potential opportunities with the Central Contra Costa Sanitary District (Central 
San) to expand the beneficial use of recycled water within the region.  One of the project 
concepts identified for exploration is expansion of the Central San – DERWA Temporary 
Wastewater Diversion Project to provide recycled water to EBMUD’s existing and future phases 
of the San Ramon Valley Recycled Water Program located within EBMUD and Central San’s 
overlapping service area.   
 
Article II of the Interim Agreement specifies that the term of the Interim Agreement shall be from 
the date of execution until December 31, 2024, and that no later than January 1, 2024, DERWA, 
DSRSD, and EBMUD shall resume good faith negotiations to update and revise the DERWA 
Agreements.  The Authority Manager is recommending that the term of the Interim Agreement 
and respective date for re-initiating negotiations on the DERWA Agreements be extended by 
one year due to DERWA staffing transitions and the need to complete the studies that will 
inform DERWA’s discussions on long-term partnering opportunities with neighboring agencies. 
The proposed amendment to the Interim Agreement would also provide an option to extend the 
deadlines in the Interim Agreement for an additional year in recognition that more time may be 
needed to work with other agencies. 
 



Prepared by CF        Reviewed by RGS 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
The Authority Manager recommends the DERWA Board of Directors approve, by Resolution 
No. 24-2, the First Amendment to the Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of 
Recycled Water between DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority, Dublin San Ramon 
Services District, and East Bay Municipal Utility District. 
 
 
 
February 5, 2024 
 
Attachment: 
 

1. DERWA Resolution No. 24-2 



  Attachment 1 

   
 

DERWA 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-2 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DSRSD•EBMUD RECYCLED 
WATER AUTHORITY APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE INTERIM 
AGREEMENT RELATED TO THE SUPPLY AND SALE OF RECYCLED WATER BETWEEN 
THE DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT•EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY, DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT, AND EAST 
BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
  

 WHEREAS, Dublin San Ramon Services District (DSRSD), East Bay Municipal Utility 

District (EBMUD), and the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority (DERWA) are parties to 

an Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled Water (“Interim Agreement”), 

which Interim Agreement was entered into on March 29, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, the Interim Agreement addresses near-term issues, establishes a process 

for implementing demand management measures and allocating recycled water shortages, and 

articulates concepts that the parties have identified for inclusion in future negotiations regarding 

the various DERWA agreements that relate to the supply and sale of recycled water for the 

DERWA Program (“DERWA Agreements”); and 

 WHEREAS, Article II of the Interim Agreement specifies that the term of the Interim 

Agreement shall be from the date of execution until December 31, 2024, and that no later than 

January 1, 2024, DERWA, DSRSD, and EBMUD shall resume good faith negotiations to update 

and revise the DERWA Agreements; and 

 WHEREAS, DSRSD, EBMUD, and DERWA desire to extend the respective dates of 

Article II by one year to allow time to further evaluate the effectiveness of demand management 

strategies and the feasibility of securing long-term supplemental supplies for the DERWA 

Program, which will inform the Parties’ good faith negotiations; and 

 WHEREAS, DSRSD, EBMUD, and DERWA have negotiated an amendment to the 

Interim Agreement, which provides for the desired one-year schedule extension, with an option 

to extend the respective dates of Article II by an additional year subject to the mutual agreement 

of the Parties. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

DSRSD•EBMUD RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY, a Joint Powers Authority located in the 

counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California, that the Authority Manager is hereby 

authorized to execute for and on behalf of the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority the 

“First Amendment to the Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled Water 

Between the Dublin San Ramon Services District•East Bay Municipal Utility District Recycled 



DERWA 
Res. No. 24-2 
 
 

- 2 - 
 

Water Authority (“DERWA”), Dublin San Ramon Services District, and East Bay Municipal Utility 

District,” attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” with any non-substantive revisions approved by legal 

counsel. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority, 

a Joint Powers Authority located in the counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California, at its 

Regular Meeting held on the 5th day of February 2024, and passed by the following vote: 

 

 
AYES: 
   
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 

 
 

      _____________________________ 
      DERWA Chair 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Nicole M. Genzale, Authority Secretary 
 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE INTERIM AGREEMENT RELATED TO THE SUPPLY 
AND SALE OF RECYCLED WATER BETWEEN THE DUBLIN SAN RAMON 

SERVICES DISTRICT●EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT RECYCLED 
WATER AUTHORITY (“DERWA”), DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT, 

AND  
EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

This First Amendment (“Amendment”) to the Interim Agreement Related to the Supply 
and Sale of Recycled Water (“Agreement”), which Agreement was entered into on 
March 29, 2022, is made and entered into this ______ day of February, 2024, by and 
between the Dublin San Ramon Services District●East Bay Municipal Utility District 
Recycled Water Authority (“DERWA”), Dublin San Ramon Services District (“DSRSD”), 
and East Bay Municipal Utility District (“EBMUD”), which mutually agree as follows: 

Article II, entitled “TERM AND FUTURE NEGOTIATIONS TO REVISE 
DERWA AGREEMENTS,” shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 

A. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of execution until
December 31, 2025.  This Agreement may be extended by up to one
(1) year, but no later than December 31, 2026, by mutual agreement in
writing by the duly authorized representatives of the Parties.

B. No later than January 1, 2025, the Parties agree to resume good faith
negotiations to update and revise the DERWA Agreements, and other
related agreements as necessary, to reflect the actual working
conditions of the DERWA Program and the issue of declining recycled
water supplies. The Parties agree to address the concepts listed in
Exhibit A during future negotiations to amend the DERWA
Agreements.  If the term of this Agreement is extended beyond
December 31, 2025, pursuant to paragraph A, then the deadline to
resume good faith negotiations will be extended until the first day
following the expiration of the Agreement’s extended term.

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain in full 
force and effect. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

Exhibit A



   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the 
day and year of the last signature affixed below and first above written. 
 
Dated: ___________________ DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT●EAST 

BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT RECYCLED 
WATER AUTHORITY  
 
 
By:   

Richard G. Sykes, Authority Manager 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
  
DERWA Counsel 
 
 
 
 
Dated: ___________________ DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 
By:   

Jan R. Lee, General Manager 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
  
DSRSD Counsel 
 
 
 
 
Dated: ___________________ EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

 
 
By:   

Clifford Chan, General Manager 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
  
EBMUD Counsel 



7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, CA 94568-3018 | Phone: (925) 828-0515 
Email: derwamanager@dsrsd.com | http://www.srvrwp.org/ 

DATE: February 5, 2024 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors 

FROM:  Richard Sykes, Authority Manager 

SUBJECT:  Authority Manager Update 

ADMINISTRATION 

DERWA Authority Manager Recruitment.  The recruitment for the permanent Authority 
Manager, who will fill the position following Mr. Sykes’ interim service, is underway.  The 
recruitment announcement was posted on January 24, 2024, and the application period will 
close on Friday, March 1, 2024.  Depending on the applicant pool, staff plan to bring a short list 
of candidates for the Board to interview at a special Board meeting in March with a final 
selection in April.  A copy of the DERWA Authority Manager recruitment brochure can be found 
on the DERWA website and is attached here: http://www.srvrwp.org/pdf/derwa-authority-
manager-recruitment-brochure.pdf 

2023 Annual Report on Central San – DERWA Temporary Wastewater Diversion Project.  
On January 22, 2024, DERWA submitted the 2023 Annual Report on the Central San – DERWA 
Temporary Wastewater Diversion Project to the Central Contra Costa Sanitary District (Central 
San).  Per the 2019 agreement between Central San and DERWA, DERWA is required each 
year to submit a report to Central San summarizing diversion operations and DERWA’s efforts 
to develop alternative supplies to offset its reliance on Central San’s wastewater flows.  In 2023, 
the Central San – DERWA Temporary Wastewater Diversion Project did not operate because 
the supply from the DSRSD wastewater treatment plant was sufficient to meet DERWA 
demands during the peak irrigation season.  

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 

DERWA Operations Plan Update: Results Workshop.  On December 14, 2023, Brown and 
Caldwell facilitated a workshop to review preliminary modeling results for the DERWA 
Operations Plan.  The DERWA Operations Plan Update is being completed as part of the 
DERWA Recycled Water Supply and Operations Plan Update.  The workshop included over 20 
participants with representatives from DERWA, EBMUD, DSRSD, and the City of Pleasanton.  
The DERWA Operations Plan was last formally updated in 2014, prior to the City of Pleasanton 
becoming a customer of DERWA.  The 2024 DERWA Operations Plan Update will include an 
updated hydraulic model of the DERWA recycled water system, a summary of existing facilities 
and operations, evaluation of operational issues and potential solutions, and a communication 
plan.  The DERWA Operations Plan is anticipated to be finalized in February 2024.  

2023 Recycled Water Production. The DERWA Recycled Water Treatment Facility produced 
4,681 acre-feet (AF) of recycled water in calendar year 2023, compared to roughly 5,300 AF 

Item 9.A

mailto:derwamanager@dsrsd.com
http://www.srvrwp.org/pdf/derwa-authority-manager-recruitment-brochure.pdf
http://www.srvrwp.org/pdf/derwa-authority-manager-recruitment-brochure.pdf


DERWA Authority Manager Update 
February 5, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
produced in 2022.  As shown in the figure below, the decrease in production is primarily due to 
the extremely wet weather experienced by the Bay Area in early 2023, which delayed the start 
of the irrigation season. Total recycled water production for calendar year 2023 was 12% lower 
than 2022 and 19% lower than 2021. 

Recycled water production during the highest demand periods in 2023 was approximately 15% 
lower than in 2021 (DERWA’s highest demand year when the Central San – DERWA 
Temporary Wastewater Diversion Project operated).  As a result, DSRSD was able to balance 
supply and demand using distribution system storage and the equalization basins at the 
wastewater treatment plant, thus avoiding the need to operate the Central San – DERWA 
Temporary Wastewater Diversion Project in 2023. 

DERWA Recycled Water Production (Calendar Years 2021-2023) 

 
 
Preventative Maintenance of DERWA Equipment. Preventative maintenance included 
periodic minor shutdowns and dewatering during December.  Staff cleaned the sand filtration 
(SF) inlet channel, serviced the SF drain pump, installed a rubber liner inlet drain gate, and 
installed unistrut sprayer mounts at the SF inlet channel to secure plumbing for a permanent 
scum control system.  A temporary system was configured following two coliform exceedances 
in July 2023.  The plumbing will be installed February 2024.  Further, staff inspected Pump 
Station (PSR1) for corrosion and cleaned the holding basin 4 wet well. 


	20240205 Board Agenda
	Agenda Item 6.A - Selection of Board Officers
	Agenda Item 7.A -  Minutes 20231211
	Agenda Item 7.B - Treasurer's Reports
	Agenda Item 7.C - Quarterly Investment Report
	Agenda Item 7.D - Cash Reserves Policy
	Agenda Item 8.A - EBMUD-Central San Recycled Water Feasibility Evaluation
	Agenda Item 8.B - First Amendment to the Interim Agreement
	Agenda Item 9.A - Authority Manager Update



